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JD PEACOCK II

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT AND COMPTROLLER, OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

April 13,2022
To the Citizens of Okaloosa County:

We are pleased to present to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Okaloosa County,
Florida (the County) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. The Clerk of the Circuit Court and
County Comptroller, by authority of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is responsible for both the
accuracy of the presented data as well as the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures. This report was prepared by the Finance Department under the supervision of the
Clerk of Court & Comptroller. This report contains three major sections: the Introductory, the
Financial, and the Statistical.

The County prepares the basic financial statements to meet the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) - for State and Local Governments (GASB 34) reporting model
requiring the County to report in five parts, including, Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
Government-wide Financial Statements, major Fund Financial Statements, Budgetary Comparisons for
certain funds and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP). Because the costs of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of internal
controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’s financial statements have been audited by the certified public accountants of the firm of
Warren Averett CPAs and Advisors. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021,
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the County’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The report of
independent accountants is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



Okaloosa County is a non-charter county established under the Constitution and the Laws of the State
of Florida. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Annual Report) includes the funds of the
primary government (the Board of County Commissioners, the Clerk of Court & Comptroller, the
Property Appraiser, the Sheriff, the Supervisor of Elections and the Tax Collector).

Generally accepted accounting principles require that organizations for which the County is financially
accountable be reported with the primary government (the County) as the reporting entity, however
none of the organizations met this criteria. This Annual Report does not include the Okaloosa County
School District or any other independent agency of Okaloosa County.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Okaloosa County is one of Florida's youngest
counties, created in 1915 by an act of the state
legislature. Okaloosa County is located in the
panhandle of Northwest Florida. The city of
Crestview, near its geographical center, is the
County seat. The estimated population is over
210,000 full time residents. As more people flock
to Florida, we continue to see some of America’s
best and brightest choose to call Okaloosa
County home.

Occupying a large portion of Okaloosa County is one of the world's largest military reservations.
Established in 1935, Eglin Air Force Base covers over 724 square miles in Okaloosa and two
neighboring counties and contains the 919" Special Operations Wing, Duke Field. Eglin Air Force Base,
is an Air Force Materiel Command base
serving as the focal point for all Air Force
Armaments. Eglin is responsible for
development, acquisition, testing,
deployment and sustainment of all
air-delivered non-nuclear weapons. Based
upon Eglin's wide range of activities, Eglin
will continue its major role in the defense
of the United States and in the economy of
Okaloosa County.  Hurlburt Field, the
headquarters of the Air Force Special
Operations Command, is also located in
Okaloosa County. Hurlburt Field occupies
about 6,000 acres in the County. The
military presence is a major
income-producing source for the County.
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Tourism is the leading private income producing source for Okaloosa County. Visitor spending exceeds
$2.9 billion annually with total employment of over
44,000 in tourism-related businesses, comprising
32% of County employment. Business spend related
to tourism totals $3.6 billion dollars. The Tourism
industry generates nearly $570 million in tax
revenues per year, offsetting the cost of services to
locals. Tourists may visit Welcome Centers on
Okaloosa Island or at the Destin-Fort Walton Beach
Airport for information on lodging, local activities,
area information, sightseeing and all other things to
do during their visit. Approximately 7.5 million
visitors are estimated to come to our area annually.

Residents and tourists in Okaloosa County have a full range of attractions and recreational
opportunities. Beaches are made up of finely ground, perfectly round quartz crystals carried from the
Appalachian Mountains that squeak beneath your bare feet with every step. Kayaking, canoeing, and
paddle boarding are great ways to explore the calm, still waters of Choctawhatchee Bay or the gentle
Gulf of Mexico waves. Destin Harbor is home to the nation’s largest charter fishing fleet and is the
epicenter of the local commercial and recreational fishing community. The harbor offers excursions,
Gulf-to-Table seafood, live music, unique shops, evening fireworks, and much more. Destin Commons
is a large open-air mall with a variety of dining options, family-friendly events, a movie theater, and
national brands alongside unique styles found only here. Fort Walton Beach offers a walkable
downtown perfect for an evening stroll through the Landing Park, Indian Temple Mound archeological
site, shops, and restaurants and bars.
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Seven industrial parks have been developed with a total of over 1,100 acres available. An industrial
park near Crestview has an 8,000-foot reinforced runway, capable of handling the largest aircraft, and
it has complete utilities and services. A municipal industrial park at Fort Walton Beach offers complete
facilities and utility services to companies supplying space-age components to the United States Air
Force.

The One Okaloosa Economic Development Council places the total labor force at 101,172 and the
unemployment rate at 3.2 percent as of September 2021. This compares favorably to Florida's rate of
4.9 percent and the national rate of 4.8 percent. Okaloosa County's cost of living is consistently below
the national average and Florida has no state income tax. Property valuations increased again this
year, continuing to provide the County the opportunity to maintain one of the state’s lowest millage
rates while also striving to maintain a relatively high level of service to County residents.

VIl



MAJOR FUNCTIONAL INITIATIVES

General Government Initiatives

The County has made significant progress in several areas on behalf of the citizens. The County has
now broken ground on every phase of the Southwest Crestview Bypass, from phases I-IV along PJ
Adams Parkway on the south side of 1-10 to
Phase V and the East-West Connector on the
north side of [-10. Coupled with the
interchange connection between Phase IV
and V, soon to be under construction by the
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT),
this $200 million project is the single-largest
undertaking in Okaloosa County government
history. This bypass will provide alternate
routes for the high volume of traffic headed
into the Crestview area from points south,
including Eglin Air Force Base. The County
has fully funded the project through a combination of half-cent discretionary infrastructure surtax, BP
Oil spill restitution and FDOT funds, scheduled to be completed by the end of 2024. Another major
initiative is the systematic stabilization of numerous dirt roads, with a combination of lime rock and
chip seal treatment, which will reduce maintenance and improve surface water quality in several areas
of north County.

Public Safety Initiatives
The Department of Corrections and Public Safety (Emergency Management, Emergency Medical

Services and Beach Safety) function as
independent departments. The Department of
Corrections and County Jail continue to deal
with population growth, while trying their best
to mitigate those increases and study future
impacts. The County dedicates a great deal of
financial and personnel resources for public
safety initiatives and facilities, like the
Emergency Operations Center. Emergency
Medical Services continues to review their
function to enhance, if possible, this much
needed service. Infrastructure Surtax funding
provided the opportunity to complete a
Sheriff’s Office Training Center improvement in
West Crestview, and projects are in place and underway to improve the security of schools and
improve emergency communications throughout the County. The Sheriff was active and involved in
many of these public safety initiatives throughout the year from a capital and operational perspective.
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Physical Environment Initiatives

Physical environment initiatives primarily relate to water/wastewater improvements, solid waste, and
stormwater. County Water & Sewer was able to rehabilitate gravity sewers made of clay by using
cured-in place piping that reduces infiltration, exfiltration and
root intrusion; thus, lessening the risk of blockages, backups,
and sanitary sewer overflows. Additionally, Water & Sewer
was able to improve and rehabilitate lift stations and water
mains across the County. Construction began on the Okaloosa
County/Niceville/Eglin Air Force Base reclaimed water project
with a total cost of $11 million for 11 miles of pipeline, which
was partially funded with $2.5 million awarded from the
Florida Water Management District. Resiliency was a top
priority and in addition to gravity sewer rehab and redundant
alarm systems being added, numerous generators and bypass
pumps were purchased, with many more in the planning
stages. Clifford Street Lift Station — the largest and most
vulnerable in the Fort Walton Beach area — underwent
numerous upgrades. In-house staff completed the installation
] of water and sewer mains along Highway 90 East to Jericho
L= A Road with the help of Triumph Gulf Coast grant funding. This
project expands water and sewer availability to a portion of the County being primed for industrial and
residential development in Crestview.

Solid Waste continues remediation
and monitoring of the closed
landfill facilities. Contracts for
solid waste service are
competitively procured and
negotiated in order to maintain
cost effective solutions. The solid
waste contract services generated
over S$12M in revenue and
managed over 160,000 tons of
waste for approximately 34,000
homes. Stormwater assessments
are levied in order to meet the
growing needs of certain
deteriorating infrastructure, while
attempting to determine some
long-term resolution.

Transportation Initiatives

Transportation needs continue to be an area of vital importance to the citizens and elected officials of
the County. Maintenance and enhancement of existing roadways and bridges is a high priority, but the
limitation for significant improvement generally is hampered by limited resources. The approval of the
half-cent discretionary infrastructure surtax, to improve infrastructure, stormwater management and
public safety in Okaloosa County is providing a new source of income for infrastructure improvements.
In addition to the Southwest Crestview Bypass, the County recently completed a complete stormwater




retrofit project in Fort Walton Beach from Standish Court to Cinco Bayou and is underway with an even
more ambitious retrofit project along 6™ Street in the Port Dixie section of Shalimar from 9™ Avenue to
its outfall south of 3™ Avenue. The Destin-Fort Walton Beach Airport (VPS), along with the General
Aviation Airports in Destin at the Destin Executive Airport (DTS) and in Crestview at the Bob Sikes
Airport (CEW), continued to enhance all facets of aviation activity with significant growth throughout
the year. Recent FDOT economic impact studies detail over $2B in economic impact generated
annually from Okaloosa County’s three airport systems. The US Department of Transportation and
FDOT helped fund projects at the County’s airports related to facility expansions and safety
improvements. At the Destin-Fort Walton Beach Airport, upgrades include a new Baggage Handling
System and main terminal lobby expansion, additional ticket counters, circulation space and
restrooms. A new five-gate Concourse C will be completed in advance of the 2022 summer season with
additional TSA checkpoints and concessions. Improvements to the rental car facilities adding additional
throughput capacity and the kick-off of design for an expanded baggage claim area with two additional
carousels are underway. The Bob Sikes Airport celebrated the ribbon cutting of Foy Shaw Industrial
Parkway, a direct connector road between U.S. Highway 90 and the airport and the Destin Executive
Airport welcomed Atlantic Aviation as the new Fixed Base Operator owner.

BESTIN
FORT WALTOMN
BEACH

B ®
B FLY VPS
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Economic Environment Initiatives

The economy of the County relates mainly to tourism and the military, although there are other
growing aspects being emphasized and explored. The Tourist Development Council’s “Destination
Stewardship” program elevates the visitor experience and improves the economic impact of stays by
engaging visitors and locals in unique locations and experiences of the Destin-Fort Walton Beach area
to fulfill the destination’s brand promise to get kids on the water, as well as to address core challenges
of improving mobility and accessibility to adventures, friendliness and pride in place. Financial
assistance in the form of housing assistance and assistance related to the many veterans located in the
area also are included in Economic Environmental initiatives. Community Redevelopment agencies in
several cities within the County utilize portions of Ad Valorem Tax dollars to enhance economic
development in those designated areas.

Human Service Initiatives
The funding for human service activities in the County include mosquito control, animal welfare,
health care, Medicaid, elder services, day care service, mental health services and court-related child




protection services expenditures. These activities, particularly state aid for Medicare and Medicaid,
account for well over half of the dollars spent in this functional category. A portion of the operation of
the Okaloosa County Health Department is another human service initiative in the County. Mosquito
control, which covers over 650,000 acres, funding is supplemented by grant funding which aides in
management of Zika control initiatives.

Culture/Recreation Initiatives

The Culture and Recreational activities are an important element of funding in this diverse County
ranging from the beautiful beaches to parks throughout the County, especially in the rural areas of
north county. A horse arena attracts equestrian enthusiasts for rodeos and other competitive events.
The Countywide Library Cooperative and their support of the other Municipal libraries, as a part of
that cooperative, continued to provide library services during the year as they introduced a digital
library card. Tourist Development continues utilizing bed tax to protect and restore Okaloosa County’s
natural resources, including artificial reef deployments, a fish aggregating device network, beach dune
restoration, and a women’s veterans memorial.

Future Initiatives

The County was heavily impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic but saw a rebound, breaking records in
Okaloosa Sales Tax Referendum revenue and occupancy in 2021. Future

planning initiatives include building up

financial reserves, establishing a budget

[+] [ ] . .
@ reserve policy, and allocating resources
a P . prudently. The half-cent discretionary
infrastructure surtax has enabled the
L 2 county to launch many projects which
will benefit county residents. There are
‘u‘ currently 23 projects in planning

phases, including the North-western
Crestview bypass. Revenue in this fund
has exceeded expectations which has
allowed for many key infrastructure
projects to be completed. The County
- a‘u -~ will continue to mon.itor roa.d and
. = stormwater needs consistent with the
availability of funds. One tax increment area was established around Interstate 10 in order to alleviate
congestion in the countywide transportation system and enhance the flow of traffic throughout the
County. The County also has an eye on the future of the economy. Currently, there are two main
drivers to the County’s economy — the military mission and tourism. In an effort to create other
opportunities, the County isrecently purchased 600+ acres at the Shoal River Ranch property east of
Crestview to preserve and to sell to a large manufacturer for use as a production plant. Additionally,
the County has used a grant from Triumph Gulf Coast to build out water and sewer lines to the site.
This ensures the site will be ‘shovel-ready’ for a manufacturer as soon as possible. The creation of a
manufacturing plant will ensure financial stability and growth for Okaloosa County for years to come.

Quality of life issues will continue to be reviewed in the area of culture and recreation. A referendum
to expand the tourist development taxing district countywide was approved by voters on October 5,
2021, which will provide additional funding to address tourism-related issues such as mobility,
accessibility, and public safety.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Readers of this report are encouraged to read Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The
MD&A provides basic financial information about the County and an overview of the County’s
activities. The government-wide financial statements, consisting of a Statement of Net Position and a
Statement of Activities, provide a comprehensive financial picture of the County, split between
governmental activities and business-type activities. These statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, where all assets,
liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the County are reported. The fund financial statements provide
information concerning the County’s funds and are prepared from the County’s accounting records.
The County’s accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified
accrual basis, with revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures being
recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are incurred. Accounting records
for the County’s proprietary funds are maintained on an accrual basis. The County’s fiscal year is
October 1 to September 30.

Section 11.45, Florida Statutes, requires an annual audit of all County agencies. The County has
directed that the annual audit be more extensive than that required by Florida Statutes by requiring
that the annual audit be a single audit covering all the funds and account groups of the County. This
requirement has been complied with, and the unmodified opinion of the auditors has been included in
this report.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for presentation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the County must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program standards,
GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report conforms to the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and it will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

A comprehensive annual financial report of this nature could not have been prepared without the
dedicated efforts of a considerable number of individuals. | want to especially thank the entire staff of
the Finance Department for their invaluable assistance in the preparation of this report. | would also
like to thank the members of the County’s independent external auditors. | would also like to thank
the Board of County Commissioners and their staff, and the other Constitutional Officers for their
personal interest and dedicated support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the
County in a responsible manner.

JD Peacock Il
Okaloosa County Clerk & Comptroller
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Warren 45 Eglin Parkway, N.E., Suite 301
Ave rett Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548

850.244.5121
warrenaverett.com

CPAS AND ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Board of County Commissioners and Other Elected Officials
Okaloosa County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Okaloosa County, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as “County”) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the County’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the County’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of September 30, 2021, and
the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Tourist Development Special Revenue Fund and
Natural Disasters Special Revenue Fund thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 20 to the financial statements, in 2021, the County adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the County’s total OPEB liability
and related ratios, schedule of the County’s proportionate share of net pension liability, and
schedule of County contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
financial statements, individual fund budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section, as
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General, Local Governmental Entity Audits, and is also not a required part of
the basic financial statements of the County. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
passenger facility charges is presented for purposes of additional analysis as specified in the
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation
Administration, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the County. The
accompanying schedule of receipts and expenditures of funds related to the Deepwater Horizons
Oil Spill is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by Florida Statute 288.8018
and the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.557(3)(f), and is not a required part of the
financial statements.



The combining financial statements and individual fund budgetary comparison schedules, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, the schedule of
expenditures of passenger facility charges and the schedule of receipts and expenditures related to
the Deepwater Horizons Oil Spill are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, the
schedule of expenditures of passenger facility charges and the schedule of receipts and
expenditures related to the Deepwater Horizons Qil Spill, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 13,
2022, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wton Gvedt LLC

Fort Walton Beach, Florida
April 13, 2022



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Okaloosa County, Florida
Management Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis of Okaloosa County’s (the County) financial statements is designed to introduce the basic
financial statements and provide an analytical overview of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2021. This analysis, in conjunction with additional information provided in our letter of transmittal,
should assist readers in identifying significant financial issues and changes in the County’s financial position. In this
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), all amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands
of dollars.

Financial Highlights

» At the close of the fiscal year the County’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows, resulting in a net position of $666,920. Governmental and business-type assets exceeded its liabilities
by $282,679 and $384,240, respectively.

« The County’s total net position increased by $98,040, or 17.2%, in comparison to the prior year.

« The County had $4,252 of unrestricted net position surplus at the close of this year compared to $(18,788) last
year.

- Total revenues increased by $57,694, or 18.2 percent, from $317,645 to $375,339.
- Total expenses increased by $4,537, or 1.7 percent, from $272,764 to $277,300.

« The County’s governmental activities reported a total net position of $282,679, which is an increase of $64,603,
or 29.6%, in comparison to the prior year. A deficit in the unrestricted net asset position of $(50,498) exists in
the governmental activities.

« The County’s business-type activities reported a total net position of $384,240, which is an increase of $33,435,
or 9.5%, in comparison to prior year. Approximately 14.2% of the total, or $54,750, is unrestricted, and thus
available for spending at the County’s discretion.

- At the end of the current fiscal year, the net pension liability decreased $83,387,188 for governmental funds
and $23,882,203 for business-type activities for an ending net pension liability of $46,529,615, an approximate
decrease of 69.75% from the prior fiscal year end. These liabilities are actuarially determined and provided by
the State of Florida Retirement System (FRS). The change in the actuarial liability primarily relates to the market
performance of investments for outpacing projected investment growth. The County’s actual contributions to
FRS are located in the required supplementary information.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Okaloosa County’s basic financial statements.
The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements, as illustrated on the following page. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion
and analysis

Government-wide financial statements Fund financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

Supplementary information

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Okaloosa
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the County’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and
deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the County include general government, public safety, physical environment, transportation, economic
environment, human services, culture/recreation and court-related activity.

The business-type activities of the County include water/sewer services, airport services, solid waste collection/
disposal, building inspection services and emergency medical service.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The County’s funds are presented in separate fund financial statements. These funds are presented on governmental
fund financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements and a fiduciary fund financial statement. The County’s
maijor funds are presented in separate columns on the fund financial statements. The definition of a major fund is one
that meets certain criteria set-forth in GASB 34. The funds that do not meet the criteria of a major fund are considered
non-major funds and are combined into a single column on the fund financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis using current financial resources
measurement focus. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and
available as net current assets. Although the activity of the internal service funds is reported with the governmental
activities on the government-wide financial statements they are not combined on the government fund financial
statements.

Four of the County’s governmental funds, the General Fund, Tourist Development Special Revenue Fund, Natural
Disasters Fund, and the Road and Bridge Construction Capital Projects Fund are classified as major funds. All other
governmental funds are combined into a single column on the governmental fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for the non-major funds is found in combining statements presented as supplemental financial data.

The County adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison has been presented
for all the governmental funds, which compares not only actual results to the budget but also the original adopted
budget to the final budget. These budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds
are presented as part of the basic financial statements. Non-major governmental fund budget comparisons are
presented as supplemental financial data.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements, like government-wide financial statements, are prepared on the full accrual
basis. Proprietary funds record both operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues are
those that are obtained from the operations of the proprietary fund.

The County reports the Water and Sewer, Airport, Solid Waste, and Emergency Medical Services Enterprise as major
funds in the proprietary fund financial statements. These enterprise funds are used to present the same functions
that are presented in the government-wide financial statements. The other enterprise funds are grouped together
and reported in a separate column entitled, “Other Enterprise Funds”. The internal service funds are combined into a
single column on the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data is presented in combining statements
as supplemental financial data.

The internal service funds are used to account for risk management, health, including other post-employment
benefits for retirees, dental and liability insurance, fleet management services and funding of short-term compensated
absence liability on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement

Data shown on the fiduciary fund financial statement is not included in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s programs. The only type of fiduciary
funds the County maintains, custodial funds, are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for
individuals or other governments.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is useful for a more complete understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning Okaloosa County’s change in and contributions to pensions and other post-
employment benefits.

This report also presents combining statements for the non-major governmental and proprietary funds and agency
funds, as well as individual fund budgets and actual comparison schedules for non-major governmental funds.
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Over time, net position may serve as the most useful indicator of a government’s financial position, although a number
of significant estimates or long-term projections now impact that net position. As of September 30, 2021, the County’s
total net position or total assets less liabilities, was $666,920. A significant portion of the County’s net position, 77.2
percent, is identified as an investment in capital assets (such as land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure), less
related debt outstanding that was used to acquire those assets. Since the County uses capital assets to provide
services to its residents, the net position represented by “net investment in capital assets” is not available for future
spending. In fact, the payment of maintenance and debt service costs on those capital assets will themselves require
governmental resources. The net investment in capital assets balance of $514,831 increased by $46,434 or 9.9%
percent, in comparison to the prior year.

Another portion of the County’s net position is restricted net position which represents assets that are subject to
constraints such as by debt covenants, grantors, laws or regulations. The restricted net position balance of $147,837
(22.2 percent of total net position) increased by $28,565 or 23.9% percent, in comparison to prior year, due to
increased funds related to capital projects and transportation which offset declines experienced in public safety.

Unrestricted net position is available to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to residents, creditors, and enterprise
fund customers. The County has an overall net unrestricted net position of $4,252 which is an increase of $23,040
from the prior year. This increase is primarily the result of the 70% reduction in the actuarially determined net
pension liability provided by the State of Florida Retirement System (FRS) compared to the prior fiscal year. The
Governmental Activities overall net position increased by $64,603. Although millage rates remained the same,
property tax revenue increased due to rising taxable assessed values. Operating grants and revenue increased
primarily from revenue received from the CARES act to facilitate public assistance and relief in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic in addition to the change in pension liability. Net Position in the County’s Business-type
activities increased by $33,435 due to increased charges for services and the impact of the change in pension
liability. Unrestricted Net Position of $54,750 is available in the County’s Business-type activities to meet ongoing
obligations to its customers.

The following is a condensed summary of net position for the primary government for fiscal years 2021 and 2020.
The amounts for 2020 were reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

Okaloosa County, Florida
Summary of Net Position
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Business-type Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current and Other Assets $ 233,331 $ 171,460 $ 124,095 $ 116,275 $ 357,426 $ 287,735
Capital Assets 272,475 251,082 367,563 349,018 640,038 600,100
Total Assets $ 505,805 $ 422542 $ 491,659 $ 465,293 $ 997,464 $ 887,835
Total Deferred Outflows $ 20,432 § 36,743 $ 8,542 $ 13,186 $ 28,974 $ 49,929
Current and Other Liabilities 53,591 26,028 19,602 17,080 73,193 43,108
Noncurrent Liabilities 128,095 212,324 75,008 108,755 203,103 321,079
Total Liabilities $ 181,687 $ 238,352 $ 94,610 $ 125,835 $ 276,296 $ 364,187
Total Deferred Inflows $ 61,782 $ 2,857 $ 2,355 $ 1,839 $ 64,137 $ 4,696
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 205,802 $ 187,707 $ 309,029 $ 280,690 $ 514,831 $ 468,397
Restricted for
Debt Service 324 706 4,797 4,276 5,121 4,982
Capital Projects 36,951 26,198 - - 36,951 26,198
Public Safety 232 2,760 - - 232 2,760
Transportation 26,362 14,303 15,664 15,117 42,026 29,420
Eco Environment 18,023 11,850 - - 18,023 11,850
Culture Recreation 42,416 41,821 - - 42,416 41,821
Court-Related 3,067 2,241 - - 3,067 2,241
Unrestricted (50,498) (69,511) 54,750 50,723 4,252 (18,788)
Total Net Position $ 282,679 $ 218,076 $ 384,240 $ 350,805 $ 666,920 $ 568,881
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the primary government for the current and
previous fiscal years:

Okaloosa County, Florida
Summary of Revenues and Expenses
As September 30, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 50,446 $ 46,012 $ 81,642 $ 71,877 $ 132,088 $ 117,889
Operating Grants and Contributions 32,536 16,884 4,913 7,684 37,449 24,568
Capital Grants and Contributions 14,883 10,957 17,901 16,664 32,784 27,621
General Revenues:
Taxes 137,729 114,110 1 668 137,730 114,778
State Shared Revenue 32,076 27,314 - - 32,076 27,314
Grant and Contributions not
Other 2,746 4,067 467 1,407 3,213 5,473
Total Revenues 270,415 219,344 104,924 98,300 375,339 317,644
Expenses:
Program Activities:
General Government 39,954 43,513 - - 39,954 43,513
Public Safety 93,550 81,394 - - 93,550 81,394
Physical Environment 2,303 2,221 - - 2,303 2,221
Transportation 20,148 25,703 - - 20,148 25,703
Economic Environment 19,043 10,772 - - 19,043 10,772
Human Services 5,894 6,383 - - 5,894 6,383
Culture and Recreation 15,109 20,679 - - 15,109 20,679
Court-Related 9,442 9,625 - - 9,442 9,625
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,366 2,413 - - 2,366 2,413
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer - - 31,106 30,291 31,106 30,291
Airport - - 15,291 14,986 15,291 14,986
Solid Waste - - 11,818 10,971 11,818 10,971
Emergency Medical - - 9,260 11,611 9,260 11,611
Other - - 2,015 2,200 2,014 2,200
Total Expenses 207,811 202,704 69,490 70,058 277,300 272,763
Inc in Net Position Before Trf 62,604 16,640 35,434 28,241 98,039 44,881
Transfers 1,999 2,587 (1,999) (2,587) - -
Inc/(Dec) in Net Position 64,603 19,227 33,435 25,654 98,039 44,881
Net Position October 1 218,076 198,849 350,805 325,151 568,881 524,000
Net Position September 30 $ 282,679 $ 218,076 $ 384,240 $ 350,805 $ 666,920 $ 568,881

Revenues increased by $51,071 or 23.3% percent in Governmental activities, primarily due to an increase in
operating grants and contributions and taxes. The tax increase was related to Ad Valorem Tax revenue collections,
attributable to increased property valuation, and the local option half-cent sales tax has contributed to this increase.
Also, related to the BP Qil spill, Triumph funding was recorded in excess of $4 million and will continue in future
years. Revenues in business-type activity increased by $6,624 or 6.7% percent from the prior year, mainly due to an
increase in charges for services. Expenses increased by $5,107 or 2.5% percent in Governmental activities, primarily
due to Public Safety and Economic Environment increases related to the recovery of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Expenses decreased by $568 or 0.8% percent also in business-type expenses due mainly to the impact of the
pension adjustment. Overall net position increased by 17.2% percent, from $568,880 in 2020 to $666,920 in 2021.
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental activities

The focus of Okaloosa County governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at fiscal year-end.

As of September 30, 2021, the County governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $180,574, an
increase of $33,331 over the prior year balances, mainly related to an excess of revenue over expenses related to
tax revenue and transfers in from other financing sources.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. As of September 30, 2021, total fund balance in the
general fund was $29,442 of which $25,645 was unassigned. The general fund revenues for the fiscal year exceeded
expenses by 13,387. The increase in the current fiscal year fund balance was mainly due to increased revenues
across all categories with moderate expenditure growth.

The Tourist Development Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures collected on
short-term rentals in Okaloosa County. The Tourist Development Special Revenue Fund balance increased over the
prior year by $6,354. The increase in fund balance is primarily due to tax revenues exceeding expenditures. The
Tourist Development Special Revenue Fund experienced significant revenue increases while maintaining expenses
in line from prior fiscal year.

The Natural Disaster Fund is typically used to account for disaster funding and expenditures not considered normal
recurring operating activity of the County. In 2021, the Natural Disaster Fund was also used to account for the
governmental activities portion of the federal funds collected and disbursed pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief
and Economic Security Act (the CARES Act). The fund balance decreased over the prior year by $1,564 due
primarily to the costs and related funding in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and denied FEMA claims relating
to natural disasters.

The Road and Bridge Construction Capital Projects Fund is the construction fund that is used to account for major
governmental capital improvements. The fund balance increased over the prior year by $8,183 due primarily to an
$8,000 contribution from the City of Crestview for the construction of the southwest Crestview bypass.

The following is a chart of all Governmental Fund Balances for the fiscal years 2021 and 2020.

Governmental Fund Balance Comparison

80k
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary Activities

Okaloosa County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government- wide financial
statements, but in more detail, and on a fund basis for the enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise Funds at September 30, 2021, total net position amounted to $384,240 as compared to $350,805 at
September 30, 2020. Net Position balances are primarily the result of operations and capital contributions in the
Water & Sewer and Airport Enterprise funds.

Business-type activities increased the County’s total net position by $33,435 . Major components of this increase
are as follows:

« The Water and Sewer Fund increased its net position by $11,674, or 6.4% to $192,801 . Net operating income
was $10,351 during the year which increased 2.3% more than last year primarily due to increases in charges
for services coupled with a decline in personal services expenses due to the impact of the pension adjustment.
The overall increase in net position for the current year relates primarily to investment in capacity expansion as
a result of construction activity.

« The Airport Fund increased its net position by $14,806, or 8.9% to $180,904 . The Airport experienced an
increase in operating revenues due to the pandemic recovery. The operating revenues increased $4,267 or
34.4% more the prior year. Passenger and customer facility charges increased 55.2% from the prior year. These
factors along with prior consecutive years of financial strength contributed to the overall change in net position.

« The Solid Waste Fund increased its net position by $3,015 , or 156.0% to $4,947. The Solid Waste had an
increase in operating revenues of $3,615, or 33.1% due to a refund of prior overpayments made from 2017 to
2021.

« The Emergency Medical Services Fund increased its net position by $2,185, or 578.1% to $1,807 . The most
significant factor in this decrease was an expense decline as a result of FRS estimates and a slight decline in
operating revenues related to charges for services.

The net operating income of the enterprise funds for fiscal years 2021 and 2020, is as follows:

Enterprise Net Operating Income (Loss)

2021 2020
Water and Sewer $ 10,351 $ 9,656
Airport 1,903 (1,941)
Solid Waste 2,724 126
Inspections 1,709 491
Emergency Medical Services (1,381) (2,930)
Tax Collector Building Maintenance 47 45
$ 15,353 $ 5,447
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Budgetary Highlights

A Budget

to actual statement is provided for the General Fund, along with each of the other major special revenue

funds as part of the basic financial statements. A budget column for both the original budget adopted for fiscal year
2021 as well as the final budget is presented.

Differences between the original budget and final amended budget are as follows:

The County added budgeted revenue in the General Fund of approximately $31,463 of which $26,143
related to intergovernmental revenue as a result of anticipated state and federal grants related to public
safety, housing assistance, and mass transit funds.

The County added budgeted revenue in the Natural Disasters Fund of approximately $63,508 related to
intergovernmental revenue as a result of anticipated federal grants related to the CARES act.

The County added budget expenditures in the General Fund of approximately $40,981 most significantly
in the areas of transportation, public safety, and capital outlay related to anticipated grant activity and
response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Actual results, when compared to the final budget, are as follows:

A variance in the General Fund of $10,549 of actual revenues under anticipated budget amounts as the
grant revenue anticipated was both not earned and unavailable in the current year based on the timing of
both qualifying expenditures and the availability of funds received.

Avariance in the Natural Disasters Fund of $43,089 of actual revenues under anticipated budget amounts
as the grant revenue anticipated was both not earned and unavailable in the current year based on the
timing of both qualifying expenditures and the availability of funds received.

A variance in the General Fund of $38,040 of actual expenditures under anticipated budget amounts due
to the timing of grant related expenditures and various capital projects that were not complete as of the
end of the fiscal year.

A variance in the Natural Disasters Fund of $42,312 of actual expenditures under anticipated budget
amounts due to the timing of grant-related expenditures and various capital projects that were not complete
as of the end of the fiscal year.

A variance of $2,203 in the General Fund, other financing uses, related to transfers out and transfers
among constitutional officers being less than anticipated.
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Okaloosa County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type activities as
of September 30, 2021 amounts to $640,038 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, roads, bridges and other improvements, machinery and equipment and park facilities.
The increase in Okaloosa County’s governmental activities, investment in capital assets, for the current fiscal year
amounted to $21,392 or 8.5% percent increase, which was mainly due to the construction in progress related to
transportation and road improvements. The business-type activities capital assets increased to $18,545, mainly due
to the water and sewer infrastructure and airport baggage handling system.

The following schedule compares capital assets for the primary government for the current and previous fiscal years:

Okaloosa County, Florida
Capital Assets
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land $ 17,299 $ 14,382 $ 14,765 $ 14,765 $ 32,064 $ 29,147
Buildings 142,620 142,238 89,642 89,627 232,262 231,865
Improvements other than buildings 51,097 45,622 277 277 51,374 45,899
Intangibles 3,528 3,495 932 998 4,460 4,492
Mach/Equipment 68,509 64,244 26,864 24,547 95,374 88,791
Const in Progress 39,491 21,258 24,729 30,046 64,220 51,304
Infrastructure 174,374 173,005 435,156 399,493 609,530 572,497
Art 29 29 70 70 99 99
Total Capital Assets 496,947 464,272 592,436 559,822 1,089,382 1,024,093
Accum Deprec (224,472) (213,189) (224,872) (210,804) (449,344) (423,993)

Total $ 272475 $ 251,082 $ 367,563 $ 349,018 $ 640,038 $ 600,100

Additional information on Okaloosa County’s capital assets can be found in notes to the financial statements (Note 6).

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the primary government, Okaloosa County, had bonded and
revolving loans for total long-term debt outstanding of $140,624. Of this amount, $80,646 comprises governmental
activities while the remaining $59,978 is secured by revenue bonds and revolving loans in business-type activities.

Okaloosa County, Florida
Outstanding Debt
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Capital Lease $ 68 $ - $ - $ -3 68 $ -
Revenue Bonds 78,098 81,221 57,303 66,864 135,401 148,085
Revolv & Comm Loan 2,480 1,063 2,675 3,120 5,155 4,183
Total 3 80,646 $ 82,284 $ 59,978 $ 69,984 $ 140,624 $ 152,268

Additional information on Okaloosa County’s long-term debt can be found in notes to the financial statements (Note 11).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Okaloosa County, Florida, Debt Ratings at September 30, 2021

Type of Debt Issue: S&P Fitch/Moody’s
2011 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Not rated Not rated
2014 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds AA AA
2016 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds AA AA
2015 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds AA+ Aa3
2019 Sales Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds AA AA

Highest rating: AAA/Aaa
Investment grade ratings: AAA/Aaa through BBB-/Baa-
Lowest rating: C

Economic Factors

Local, national, and international economic factors influence the County’s revenues in a variety of ways. Positive
economic growth is correlated with increased revenues from property taxes, state sales taxes, fuel taxes, charges
for services, state revenue sharing as well as state and federal grants, while negative economic growth generally has
the opposite reaction. Economic growth may be measured by a variety of indicators such as employment growth,
unemployment, new construction and assessed values, diversification of the property tax base, and Enterprise Fund
revenue and net asset growth.

* U.S. Department of Labor and Florida Department of Economic Opportunity reported that Okaloosa County’s
labor force has increased from 96,058 to 98,426 as of December 2021, an increase of 2.5 percent. The increasing
labor force coupled with the recovery of COVID-19 pandemic led to the County’s unemployment rate to to 2.2
percent in 2021 compared to 4.6 percent for 2020. The County’s unemployment rate still remains extremely
favorable compared to the state and national rates of 2.9 and 3.9 percent, respectively for 2021.

« The assessed value of real property located in the County after exemptions increased from $18.898 billion to
$20.186 billion in 2021, while the total assessed value of the County increased from $19.798 billion to $21.104
billion in 2021. This represented an increase of $1.306 billion or 6.6 percent in property valuation.

» Okaloosa County has a diversified property tax base. The ten largest property taxpayers in the County represent
approximately only 1.5 percent of the total ad valorem property tax levy.

More information on economic factors is provided in the Statistical Section.
Request for information

This financial report is designed to provide the reader an overview of the County. Questions regarding any information
provided in this report should be directed to:

Finance Department
102 East James Lee Blvd.
Crestview, Florida, 32536.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2021
Primary Government
Government Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 19,403,508 $ 7,058,738 $ 26,462,246
Investments 174,915,768 68,801,183 243,716,951
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles 6,691,916 14,584,077 21,275,993
Internal Balances 1,130 (1,130) -
Due from (to) Fiduciary Funds 251,503 - 251,503
Due from Other Governments 15,064,633 6,889,397 21,954,030
Inventories 706,748 2,285,444 2,992,192
Prepaid Expenses 2,321,948 1,924,334 4,246,282
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Customer Deposits - 1,429,243 1,429,243
Other Deposits - 1,589,282 1,589,282
Investments 13,973,387 19,534,761 33,508,148
Total Current Assets 233,330,541 124,095,329 357,425,870
Capital Assets
Land 17,298,589 14,765,162 32,063,751
Buildings 142,620,124 89,641,750 232,261,874
Improvements Other Than Buildings 51,097,411 276,776 51,374,187
Intangibles 3,527,654 932,259 4,459,913
Machinery and Equipment 68,509,103 26,864,410 95,373,513
Construction in Progress 39,490,974 24,729,226 64,220,200
Infrastructure 174,373,683 435,156,290 609,529,973
Works of Art 29,195 69,865 99,060
Accumulated Depreciation (224,471,973) (224,872,318) (449,344,291)
Total Noncurrent Assets 272,474,760 367,563,420 640,038,180
Total Assets $ 505,805,301 $ 491,658,749 $ 997,464,050
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges Related to Pensions $ 19,574,026 $ 7,044,967 $ 26,618,993
Deferred Charges on Refunding - 1,444,298 1,444,298
Deferred Charges Related to OPEB 858,375 52,240 910,615
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 20,432,401 $ 8,541,505 $ 28,973,906
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 526,237,702 $ 500,200,254 $1,026,437,956

Continued...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

16 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 2021



OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Governments

Unearned Revenue

Due to Depositors

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Customer Deposits
Interest Payable

Current Portion of Long-term Obligations
Compensated Absences
Closure Costs Payable
Claims and Judgments
Capital Leases
Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent Portion of Long-term Obligations
Compensated Absences
Closure Costs Payable
Claims and Judgments
Capital Leases
Notes Payable

September 30, 2021

Loans and Bonds Payable, Net of Unamortized Loan Costs

Other Post Employment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges Related to Pensions
Deferred Charges Related to OPEB
Unearned Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for
Debt Service
Capital Outlay
Public Safety
Transporation
Economic Environment
Culture and Recreation
Court-Related
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position (Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources,
and Net Position

Primary Government

Government Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 13,397,870 $ 9,718,598 $ 23,116,468
1,000,861 62,445 1,063,306
30,013,424 2,674,901 32,688,325
141,653 - 141,653
- 1,429,413 1,429,413
1,618,308 643,312 2,261,620
3,316,585 935,089 4,251,674
- 326,201 326,201
1,683,720 - 1,683,720
17,861 - 17,861
135,000 456,777 591,777
2,266,000 3,354,999 5,620,999
53,591,282 19,601,735 73,193,017
4,230,716 769,735 5,000,451
- 2,099,954 2,099,954
3,969,000 - 3,969,000
50,047 - 50,047
2,345,000 - 2,345,000
75,832,486 56,167,091 131,999,577
9,603,148 1,483,963 11,087,111
32,064,906 14,464,709 46,529,615
- 22,575 22,575
128,095,303 75,008,027 203,103,330
$ 181,686,585 94,609,762 $ 276,296,347
$ 60,592,258 18,803,930 $ 79,396,188
1,189,627 191,035 1,380,562
- 2,355,158 2,355,158
$ 61,781,785 21,350,123 § 83,131,908
$ 205,801,753 309,028,849 $ 514,830,602
323,769 4,797,318 5,121,087
36,951,025 - 36,951,025
232,032 - 232,032
26,362,195 15,664,189 42,026,384
18,023,414 - 18,023,414
42,416,015 - 42,416,015
3,067,106 - 3,067,106
(50,497,977) 54,750,013 4,252,036
$ 282,679,332 $ 384,240,369 $ 666,919,701
$ 526,147,702 $ 500,200,254 $ 1,026,347,956

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 39,954,236 $ 16,802,142 $ 2,544,982 $ - $ (20,607,112)
Public Safety 93,550,440 23,422,546 22,153,821 951,761 (47,022,312)
Physical Environment 2,303,418 15,665 18,661 8,000,000 5,730,908
Transportation 20,147,942 1,265,214 4,945,030 5,848,960 (8,088,738)
Economic Environment 19,043,308 - 1,727,861 - (17,315,447)
Human Services 5,893,697 - 91,358 - (5,802,339)
Culture and Recreation 15,109,423 817,921 172,998 82,203 (14,036,301)
Court-Related 9,442,483 8,122,170 881,120 - (439,193)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,366,070 - - - (2,366,070)
Total Governmental Activities 207,811,017 50,445,658 32,535,831 14,882,924  (109,946,604)
Business-type Activities

Water & Sewer 31,106,122 38,783,588 2,604,960 1,209,257 11,491,683
Airport 15,291,418 16,666,773 83,562 15,990,411 17,449,328
Solid Waste 11,817,717 14,541,984 234,239 - 2,958,506
Emergency Medical Services 9,259,525 7,878,579 1,990,630 700,997 1,310,681
Inspection and Code Enforcement 2,015,378 3,724,541 - - 1,709,163
Tax Collector Building Maintenance - 46,580 - - 46,580
Total Business- type Activities 69,490,160 81,642,045 4,913,391 17,900,665 34,965,941
Total Primary Government $ 277,301,177 $ 132,087,703 $ 37,449,222 $§ 32,783,589 $ (74,980,663)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Changes in Net Position
Net (Expenses) Revenue

Unrestricted General Revenues
Taxes
Ad Valorem Tax
Tourist Development Tax
Local Option Fuel Tax
Communication Services Tax
Ninth-Cent Voted Fuel Tax
Local Business Tax
Infrastructure Surtax
State Revenue Sharing
Miscellaneous Tax Revenue
Local Government Sales Tax
Gas Tax
Investment Earnings
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers - Internal Activities

Total Unrestricted-General
Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (109,946,604) $ 34,965,941 $ (74,980,663)
75,801,624 781 75,802,405
32,335,125 - 32,335,125
6,513,440 - 6,513,440
1,413,169 - 1,413,169
1,204,797 - 1,204,797
384,716 - 384,716
20,076,386 - 20,076,386
6,171,961 - 6,171,961
22,071,606 - 22,071,606
3,832,118 - 3,832,118
379,951 68,544 448,495
(33,330) 325,586 292,256
2,398,996 73,313 2,472,309
1,999,098 (1,999,098) -
174,549,657 (1,530,874) 173,018,783
64,603,053 33,435,067 98,038,120
218,076,279 350,805,302 568,881,581

$ 282,679,332

$ 384,240,369 $ 666,919,701

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2021

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Tourist Road and
Development Bridge
Special Natural Contruction Other Total
Revenue Disasters Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5745318 $ 629,618 $ 109,307 $ 44,071 $ 6,626,923 $§ 13,155,237
Investments 23,097,446 57,546,791 23,818,431 35,393,002 46,280,454 186,136,124
Accounts Receivable 185,307 25,134 - 6,279,711 26,012 6,516,164
Due from Other Funds 105,012 - - - 1,470,000 1,575,012
Due from Other Elected Officials 3,803,143 - - - 235,280 4,038,423
Due from Other Governments 5,819,952 4,134,562 902,892 1,246,045 2,846,282 14,949,733
Inventory 85,701 344 4,607 181,093 269,625 541,370
Prepaids 1,505,293 215,231 - - 144,097 1,864,621
Total Assets $ 40,347,172 $§ 62,551,680 $ 24,835,237 $ 43,143,922 $§ 57,898,673 § 228,776,684
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 1,121,287 $ 882,869 $ -8 177,638 $ 390,209 $ 2,572,003

Contracts Payable 1,199,778 1,229,091 - 2,449,609 1,988,091 6,866,569

Other Accrued Liabilities 2,522,605 102,192 - - 553,537 3,178,334

Due to Other Funds 491,291 - - - 123,850 615,141

Due to Other Elected Officials 3,653,629 155,233 - - 9,232 3,818,094

Due to Other Governments 509,235 147,440 - - 344,186 1,000,861

Due to Depositors 48,047 1,932 - - 91,674 141,653

Unearned Revenue 1,358,952 125,019 26,137,486 - 2,389,243 30,010,700
Total Liabilities 10,904,824 2,643,776 26,137,486 2,627,247 5,890,022 48,203,355
Deferred Inflow of Resources

Unavailable Revenue 250 - - - - 250
Fund Balances

Nonspendable 1,590,994 215,575 4,607 181,093 413,722 2,405,991

Restricted - 59,692,329 - 40,335,582 42,627,888 142,655,799

Committed 190,777 - - - 716,840 907,617

Assigned 2,014,940 - - - 8,389,876 10,404,816

Unassigned 25,645,387 - (1,306,856) - (139,675) 24,198,856
Total Fund Balances 29,442,098 59,907,904 (1,302,249) 40,516,675 52,008,651 180,573,079

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of

Resources, and Fund Balances $ 40,347,172 $ 62,551,680 $ 24,835,237 $ 43,143,922 $ 57,898,673 $ 228,776,684

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2021

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 180,573,079

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.The difference does not include the net capital assets of the Internal Service fund
accounted for separately.

Those assets consist of:

Governmental nondepreciable/amortizable asset 57,648,802

Governmental depreciable/amortizable assets 433,273,609

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization (219,116,782)

271,805,629

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance,
compensated absences and fleet maintenance, to individual funds.The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.Internal service fund
net position are: (6,721,721)
Unavailable revenues in governmental funds is susceptible to full accrual on the entity-wide statements. 250

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits are
applicable to future periods and not reported in govenmental funds.The difference does not include the
internal service fund which is included above.

Deferred outflows of resources - Pensions 19,055,581

Deferred inflows of resources - Pensions (59,230,762)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 404,347
Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB (710,864)

(40,481,698)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable inthe current period and therefore
are not reported in the governmental funds. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.The difference does not include the
compensated absences or OPEB liabilites of the Internal Service funds accounted for separately.All
liabilites, both current and long-term are reported in the statement of net position.

Balances at September 30, 2021 are:

Accrued interest on bonds (1,618,308)
Revenue bonds payable (78,098,486)
Notes payable (2,480,000)
Capital leases (67,908)
Compensated absences (5,731,945)
Other Post Employment Benefits (3,492,181)
Net Pension Liability, proportionate share (31,007,379)

Total long-term liabilities (122,496,207)

Net position of governmental activities $ 282,679,332

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
Tourist Road and
Development Bridge
Special Natural Contruction Other Total
Revenue Disasters Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 73,236,910 $ 32,335,123 - $ 2287,035 $ 29,870,189 $137,729,257
Licenses and Permits 29,500 - - - 587,738 617,238
Intergovernmental 35,189,674 1,300,319 20,437,970 11,621,230 6,927,196 75,476,389
Charges for Services 22,914,983 572,971 - - 7,226,395 30,714,349
Fines 20,251 - - - 1,111,355 1,131,606
Miscellaneous 3,603,134 83,765 - 3,985,697 1,234,315 8,906,911
Total Revenues 134,994,452 34,292,178 20,437,970 17,893,962 46,957,188 254,575,750
Expenditures
Current
General Government 33,743,905 - - - 1,043,362 34,787,267
Public Safety 64,546,125 - 20,059,469 - 1,124,143 85,729,737
Physical Environment 760,227 - - - 1,211,287 1,971,514
Transportation 4,167,348 - - 2,395,619 8,740,180 15,303,147
Economic Environment 2,609,530 12,345,248 1,451,051 - 1,701,450 18,107,279
Human Services 4,619,291 - - - 665,381 5,284,672
Culture and Recreation 2,892,471 8,029,901 - - 1,260,512 12,182,884
Court-Related 2,993,803 - - - 6,376,203 9,370,006
Capital Outlay 5,256,121 4,447,198 290,440 9,130,660 17,281,351 36,405,770
Debt Service
Principal 18,455 - - - 2,788,000 2,806,455
Interest - - - - 3,312,572 3,312,572
Other Debt Service Costs - - - - 98,804 98,804
Total Expenditures 121,607,276 24,822,347 21,800,960 11,526,279 45,603,245 225,360,107
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 13,387,176 9,469,831 (1,362,990) 6,367,683 1,353,943 29,215,643
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 7,632,313 - - 1,815,000 14,812,969 24,260,282
Transfers Out (15,242,261) (3,115,491) - - (4,353,432)  (22,711,184)
Transfers Among Constitutional
Officers 702,090 - (201,618) - (500,472) -
Increase in Lease Obligations
Under Capital Lease 85,595 - - - - 85,595
Proceeds of Debt Issuances - - - - 2,480,000 2,480,000
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (6,822,263) (3,115,491) (201,618) 1,815,000 12,439,065 4,114,693
Net Change in Fund
Balances 6,564,913 6,354,340 (1,564,608) 8,182,683 13,793,008 33,330,336
Fund Balances - Beginning 22,877,185 53,553,564 262,359 32,333,992 38,215,643 147,242,743
Fund Balances - Ending $ 29,442,098 $ 59,907,904 $ (1,302,249) $ 40,516,675 $ 52,008,651 $180,573,079

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ofactivities are different because:
Governmental funds do not report capital assets on the Balance Sheet; however, they are reported in the
government-wide financial statements.Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated or amortized over the estimated useful

lives of the assets.

Expenditures for capital assets
Less current year depreciation/amortization

36,405,770

(14,521,196)

Governmental funds do not report capital assets on the Balance Sheet; however, they are reported in the
government-wide financial statements.Accordingly, proceeds received from disposals of capital asset are
shown as income in the governmental financial statements and a gain or loss is reported in the Statement of
Activities.In addition, capital asset reassignments are reported as transfers in the Statement of Activities.

Revenues that provide current financial resources are reported as revenue in the funds but are recognized

as revenue in the statement of activities when earned.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to the governmental fund, while the
repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on the net position.Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums or discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the Statement of Activities.In addition, long-term debt reassignments are reported as transfers

on the Statement of Activities.

Debt proceeds

Debt principal payments

Amortization of premiums/discounts

Decrease in long-term liability to other governments

(2,565,596)
3,204,551
998,992

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources

and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences
Other Post Employment Benefits
Changes in accrued interest on long term debt

339,637
(128,195)
46,314

Governmental funds report County pension contributions as expenditures.In the statement of activities, the

cost of the pension benefits earned net of contributions is reported as pension expense.

Difference between pension contribution and net pension expense

Internal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance,
compensated absences and fleet maintenance to individual funds.The net revenue or expense of the internal

service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 72,856,181 $ 73,187,181 $ 73,236,910 $ 49,729
Licenses and Permits 18,000 29,500 29,500 -
Intergovernmental 19,825,102 45,967,697 35,189,674 (10,778,023)
Charges for Services 19,088,098 20,150,511 22,914,983 2,764,472
Fines 7,100 20,390 20,251 (139)
Miscellaneous 2,285,478 6,187,953 3,603,134 (2,584,819)
Total Revenues 114,079,959 145,543,232 134,994,452 (10,548,780)
Expenditures
Current
General Government 34,231,096 36,239,382 33,743,905 2,495,477
Public Safety 66,940,281 85,092,577 64,546,125 20,546,452
Physical Environment 806,589 889,059 760,227 128,832
Transportation 85,538 10,334,726 4,167,348 6,167,378
Economic Environment 2,614,115 2,678,039 2,609,530 68,509
Human Services 4,300,197 5,175,519 4,619,291 556,228
Culture and Recreation 2,574,159 4,552,153 2,892,471 1,659,682
Court-Related 2,982,502 3,664,111 2,993,803 670,308
Capital Outlay 4,131,862 11,021,946 5,256,121 5,765,825
Debt Service
Principal - - 18,455 (18,455)
Total Expenditures 118,666,339 159,647,512 121,607,276 38,040,236
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (4,586,380) (14,104,280) 13,387,176 27,491,456
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 6,872,273 7,983,943 7,632,313 (351,630)
Transfers Out (6,107,736) (16,057,204) (15,242,261) 814,943
Transfers Among Constitutional Officers (7,030,037) (952,384) 702,090 1,654,474
Increase in Lease Obligations Under Capital Lease - - 85,595 85,595
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6,265,500) (9,025,645) (6,822,263) 2,203,382
Net Change in Fund Balance (10,851,880) (23,129,925) 6,564,913 29,694,838
Fund Balance - Beginning 10,851,880 23,129,925 22,877,185 (252,740)
Fund Balance - Ending $ - $ - $§ 29,442,098 $ 29,442,098

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TOURIST DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General Government
Physical Environment
Economic Environment
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Transfers Among Constitutional Officers
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
21,791,510 $ 21,791,510 $ 32,335,123 10,543,613
- 2,853,566 1,300,319 (1,553,247)
1,084,700 1,084,700 572,971 (511,729)
3,971,000 3,971,000 83,765 (3,887,235)
26,847,210 29,700,776 34,292,178 4,591,402
161,091 162,399 - 162,399
2,397 2,397 - 2,397
31,634,726 30,680,523 12,345,248 18,335,275
29,317,314 37,022,292 8,029,901 28,992,391
7,868,410 12,031,965 4,447,198 7,584,767
68,983,938 79,899,576 24,822,347 55,077,229
(42,136,728) (50,198,800) 9,469,831 59,668,631
(2,835,763) (2,885,763) - 2,885,763
- - (3,115,491) (3,115,491)
(589,000) (589,000) - 589,000
(3,424,763) (3,474,763) (3,115,491) 359,272
(45,561,491) (53,673,563) 6,354,340 60,027,903
45,561,491 53,673,563 53,553,564 (119,999)
- 3 - $ 59,907,904 $ 59,907,904

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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FINANCIAL SECTION OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NATURAL DISASTER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - $ 63,508,189 $ 20,437,970 $ (43,070,219)
Miscellaneous - 19,130 - (19,130)
Total Revenues - 63,527,319 20,437,970 (43,089,349)
Expenditures
Current
Public Safety - 62,988,362 20,059,469 42,928,893
Economic Environment - 832,990 1,451,051 (618,061)
Capital Outlay - 291,722 290,440 1,282
Total Expenditures - 64,113,074 21,800,960 42,312,114
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures - (585,755) (1,362,990) (777,235)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In - 914,940 - (914,940)
Transfers Among Constitutional Officers - (329,185) (201,618) 127,567
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 585,755 (201,618) (787,373)
Net Change in Fund Balance - - (1,564,608) (1,564,608)
Fund Balance - Beginning - - 262,359 262,359
Fund Balance - Ending $ -3 - $ (1,302,249) $ (1,302,249)
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net of Allowance
for Uncollectible
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Elected Officials
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
Prepaids
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Customer Deposits
Other Deposits
Investments
Total Restricted Assets
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Intangibles
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Infrastructure
Works of Art
Less Accumulated
Depreciation/Amortization
Total Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated
Depreciation/Amortization)
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Business-type Activities

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emergency
Water and Medical
Sewer Airport Solid Services
Enterprise Enterprise Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund

1,851,633 19,754 § 1,511,180 $ 1,758,196
40,542,544 12,865,661 4,632,631 7,534,173
4,937,261 4,122,058 2,604,920 2,836,532

- - 221 -

- - - 1

3,415,764 3,441,136 32,497 -
2,063,371 73,180 - 148,893
558,677 1,351,734 - 4,960
1,400,735 - 28,508 -
1,589,282 - - -
3,870,572 15,664,189 - -
6,860,589 15,664,189 28,508 -
60,229,839 37,537,712 8,809,957 12,282,755
8,180,380 6,451,481 133,301 -
6,452,280 83,074,107 115,363 -

- - 276,776 -

759,284 100,400 - 30,150
15,259,018 2,209,422 3,430,909 5,565,132
10,558,045 14,171,181 - -
320,754,728 114,401,562 - -
- 69,865 - -
(152,022,236) (65,022,618) (3,168,977) (4,290,465)
209,941,499 155,455,400 787,372 1,304,817
209,941,499 155,455,400 787,372 1,304,817
270,171,338 $ 192,993,112 $ 9,697,329 $ 13,587,572

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities --
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds

$ 1,917,975 7,058,738 $ 6,248,271
3,226,174 68,801,183 2,753,031
83,306 14,584,077 175,752

- 221 321,211

- 1 1,221

- 6,889,397 114,900

- 2,285,444 165,378

8,963 1,924,334 457,327

- 1,429,243 -

- 1,589,282 -

- 19,534,761 -

- 22,553,286 -

5,236,418 124,096,681 10,237,091

- 14,765,162 316,861

- 89,641,750 900,466

- 276,776 -

42,425 932,259 -
399,929 26,864,410 4,549,650

- 24,729,226 -

- 435,156,290 257,345

- 69,865 -
(368,022) (224,872,318) (5,355,191)

74,332 367,563,420 669,131

74,332 367,563,420 669,131

$ 5,310,750 $ 491,660,101 $ 10,906,222
Continued...

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges Related to Pensions
Deferred Charges on Refunding

Deferred Charges Related to OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Closure Costs Payable
Claims and Judgments
Other Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Elected Officials
Due to Other Governments
Unearned Revenue
Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets
Customer Deposits Payable
Interest Payable

Total Current Liabilities Payable
from Restricted Assets

Total Current Liabilities

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

September 30, 2021

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business-type Activities

Emergency
Water and Medical
Sewer Airport Solid Services
Enterprise Enterprise Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 2,662,903 $ 1,167,260 276,406 $ 2,737,597
1,444,298 - - -
20,944 5,697 2,279 21,059
$ 4,128,145 1,172,957 278,685 $ 2,758,656
$ 274,299,483 194,166,069 9,876,014 § 16,346,228
903,575 1,039,384 771,672 $ 20,734
2,347,436 3,505,690 136,216 74,143
477,234 91,862 50,416 173,759
- - 326,201 -
345,991 178,548 32,333 297,230
142 - - -
118 697 - 18
222 37,425 89 965
1,740,854 884,620 - 21,294
456,777 - - -
3,354,999 - - -
1,400,735 - 28,508 -
643,311 - - -
2,044,046 - 28,508 -
11,671,394 5,738,226 1,345,435 588,143

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 2021

29



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities -
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds
$ 200,801 7,044,967 518,445
- 1,444,298 -
2,261 52,240 454,028
$ 203,062 8,541,505 972,473
$ 5,513,812 500,201,606 11,878,695
$ 2,124 2,737,489 733,924
1,495 6,064,980 68,445
141,818 935,089 1,746,338
- 326,201 -
- - 1,683,720
62,199 916,301 68,595
- 142 1,249,999
377 1,210 -
23,744 62,445 -
28,133 2,674,901 2,724
- 456,777 -
- 3,354,999 -
- 1,429,243 -
- 643,311 -
- 2,072,554 -
259,890 19,603,088 5,553,745
Continued...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Closure Costs Payable
Claims and Judgments
Loan-State of Florida
(Net of Unamortized Discounts)
Revenue Bonds Payable
(Net of Unamortized Discounts and Premiums)
Other Post Employment Benefits
Other Accrued Liabilities
Net Pension Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges Related to Pensions
Deferred Charges Related to OPEB
Unearned Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for Debt Service

Restricted for Passenger Facility Charges Program
Restricted for Customer Facility Charges Program
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position (Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and
Net Position (Deficit)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2021

Business-type Activities

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emergency
Water and Medical
Sewer Airport Solid Services
Enterprise Enterprise Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund

420,020 91,284 37,073 109,850
- - 2,099,954 -
2,218,679 - - -
53,948,412 - - -
600,497 163,335 65,335 589,972
- 22,575 - -
5,356,615 2,747,136 500,003 5,574,902
62,544,223 3,024,330 2,702,365 6,274,724
74,215,617 8,762,556 4,047,800 6,862,867
7,206,114 2,123,792 872,842 7,600,069
77,130 20,979 8,394 76,207
- 2,355,158 - -
7,283,244 4,499,929 881,236 7,676,276
151,406,928 155,455,400 787,372 1,304,817
4,797,318 - - -
- 10,402,640 - -
- 5,261,549 - -
36,596,376 9,783,996 4,159,606 502,268
192,800,622 180,903,585 4,946,978 1,807,085
274,299,483 194,166,069 9,876,014 16,346,228

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities --
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds

111,508 769,735 69,017

- 2,099,954 -

- - 3,969,000

- 2,218,679 -

- 53,948,412 -

64,824 1,483,963 6,110,968

- 22,575 -

286,053 14,464,709 1,057,527

$ 462,385 75,008,027 11,206,512
$ 722,275 94,611,115 16,760,257
$ 1,001,113 18,803,930 1,361,496
8,325 191,035 478,663

- 2,355,158 -

$ 1,009,438 21,350,123 1,840,159
$ 74,332 309,028,849 669,131
- 4,797,318 -

- 10,402,640 -

- 5,261,549 -
3,707,767 54,750,013 (7,390,852)
$ 3,782,099 384,240,369 (6,721,721)
$ 5,513,812 500,201,606 11,878,695

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Contractual Services
Supplies
Insurance Premiums and Claims
Utilities
Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation/Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment Income (Loss)
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Interest Expenses
Other Debt Services Costs
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets
Gain (Loss) on Defeasance of Debt

Total nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before
Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Passenger and Customer
Facility Charges
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Change in Net Position

Total Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning

Total Net Position (Deficit) - Ending

Business-type Activities

Emergency

Water and Medical

Sewer Airport Solid Services

Enterprise Enterprise Waste Enterprise

Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 38,782,762 $ 16,666,773 $ 12,892,950 $ 7,878,579
826 - 1,649,034 -
38,783,588 16,666,773 14,541,984 7,878,579
7,951,300 2,102,860 884,183 6,629,775
3,401,260 4,008,280 9,990,034 484,117
1,090,802 932,338 105,694 850,453
2,362,768 955,660 14,485 26,746
4,938,952 1,672,173 517,810 752,524
8,687,460 5,092,254 305,511 515,910
28,432,542 14,763,565 11,817,717 9,259,525
10,351,046 1,903,208 2,724,267 (1,380,946)
- - - 781
2,604,960 83,562 234,239 1,990,630
45,418 8,976 2,416 12,159
73,314 - - -
(2,673,280) (168,053) - -
(300) (18,491) - -
63,418 (19,908) 53,589 228,486
- (341,309) - -
113,530 (455,223) 290,244 2,232,056
10,464,576 1,447,985 3,014,511 851,110
1,209,257 9,608,048 - 700,997
- 6,382,363 - -
- - 33 633,000
- (2,632,098) - (33)
11,673,833 14,806,298 3,014,544 2,185,074
181,126,789 166,097,286 1,932,434 (377,989)
$ 192,800,622 $ 180,903,584 $ 4,946,978 $ 1,807,085

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities -
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds

$ 594,250 76,815,314  § 16,177,721
3,119,545 3,119,545 -
57,326 1,707,186 101,851
3,771,121 81,642,045 16,279,572
1,484,202 19,052,320 3,281,894
346,684 18,230,375 713,152
32,020 3,011,307 2,651,486

- - 9,666,697

- 3,359,659 6,772

116,509 7,997,968 376,152
35,963 14,637,098 80,171
2,015,378 66,288,727 16,776,324
1,755,743 15,353,318 (496,752)

- 781 -

- 4,913,391 -

(425) 68,544 2,137

- 73,314 -

- (2,841,333) -

- (18,791) -

- 325,585 195,357

- (341,309) -

(425) 2,180,182 197,494
1,755,318 17,533,500 (299,258)

- 11,518,302 -

- 6,382,363 -

- 633,033 450,000

- (2,632,131) -

1,755,318 33,435,067 150,742
2,026,781 350,805,301 (6,872,463)
$ 3,782,099 384,240,368 $ (6,721,721)

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Business-type Activities

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emergency
Water and Solid Medical
Sewer Airport Waste Services
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers $ 38,407,625 $ 16,154,206 $ 12,853,032 $ 9,866,466
Payments to Suppliers (11,425,042) (6,893,318) (10,838,065) (1,996,825)
Payments to Employees (8,352,170) (9,720) (1,014,292) (7,604,252)
Payments for Other Revenues 73,314 56 - -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 18,703,727 9,251,224 1,000,675 265,389
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Subsidy - Intergovernmental Revenue 2,604,960 83,562 234,239 1,990,630
Transfers (Out) In - (2,632,098) 33 632,967
Net Interfund Activity - - 1,008 (1

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities 2,604,960 (2,548,536) 235,280 2,623,596
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets (13,029,876)  (19,837,945) (38,649) (479,050)
Passenger and Customer Facility Charges - 6,382,363 - -
Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 307,997 (355) - 228,486
Net Borrowing (Repayments)

Principal Paid on Capital Debt (3,634,365) (6,366,792) - -

Interest Paid on Capital Debt (3,477,476) (85,197) - -

Other Debt Service Costs (300) - - -
Capital Contributions 1,209,257 9,608,048 - 700,997

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities  (18,624,763)  (10,299,878) (38,649) 450,433
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Investments 1,767,481 1,360,255 - (10,430)
Purchases of Investments (3,000,000) (546,944) (1,000,000) (4,000,000)
Interest Income 45,418 8,976 - 12,159

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (1,187,101) 822,287 (1,000,000) (3,998,271)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,496,823 (2,774,903) 197,306 (658,853)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 3,344,827 2,794,657 1,342,382 2,417,049
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 4841650 $ 19,754 1,539,688 $ 1,758,196
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year Consist of:

Current assets $ 1,851,633 $ 19,754 1,511,180 $ 1,758,196

Restricted assets 2,990,017 - 28,508 -

Total $ 4841650 $ 19,754 1,639,688 $ 1,758,196

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities -
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds

$ 3,757,461 § 81,038,790 $ 17,006,421
(476,753) (31,630,003) (13,418,850)
(1,628,402) (18,608,836) (3,303,675)

- 73,370 -

1,652,306 30,873,321 283,896

- 4,913,391 -

- (1,999,098) 450,000

- 1,007 322,140

- 2,915,300 772,140
(7,944) (33,393,464) (153,700)

- 6,382,363 -

- 536,128 195,357

- (10,001,157) -

- (3,562,673) -

- (300) -

- 11,518,302 -

(7,944) (28,520,801) 41,657

- 3,117,306 -
(678,276) (9,225,220) (2,800)

(425) 66,128 2,138
(678,701) (6,041,786) (662)

965,661 (773,966) 1,097,031

952,314 10,851,229 5,151,240

$ 1,917,975 $ 10,077,263 $ 6,248,271
$ 1,917,975 $ 7,058,738 $ 6,248,271
- 3,018,525 -

$ 1,917,975 $ 10,077,263 $ 6,248,271
Continued...

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Reconciliation of Operating Income (L
(Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Business-type Activities

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided

(Used) by Operating Activities
Depreciation/Amortization
Other revenue

Decrease (Increase) in Assets
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Outflows

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Service Contracts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Elected Officials
Due to Other Governments
Compensated Absences Payable
Closure Cost Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Deposits
Unearned Revenue
Other Post Employment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflows
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $

Emergency
Water and Solid Medical
Sewer Airport Waste Services
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund
oss) to Net Cash Provided
$ 10,351,046 $ 1,903,209 $ 2,724,267 $ (1,380,946)
8,687,460 5,092,254 305,511 515,910
73,314 - - 781
(539,457) (2,445,572) (1,707,880) 1,968,154
(891,486) 1,478,710 (9,580) -
- 88 - -
109,235 (12,066) - (16,397)
(429,926) 24,834 - 4,190
2,278,562 476,952 202,714 1,752,822
(943,525) 813,823 727,055 (65,188)
1,606,389 (175,455) (605,537) 20,995
115 (32) - -
118 697 - (100)
(84) 16,847 (92) (4,366)
(138,839) (12,731) (23,995) (57,928)
- - (333,024) -
26,418 6,453 1,556 177,881
30,283 3,000 28,508 -
1,024,697 451,294 - 18,952
35,172 9,567 3,826 34,557
(9,173,924) (2,621,122) (1,113,977) (9,632,620)
6,598,159 4,240,474 801,323 6,928,692
8,352,681 7,348,015 (1,723,592) 1,646,335
18,703,727 $ 9,251,224 $ 1,000,675 $ 265,389

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON CASH
TRANSACTIONS:

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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- Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Other Total Activities -
Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds
$ 1,755,743 $ 15,353,319 $ (496,752)
35,963 14,637,098 80,171
- 74,095 -
(22,224) (2,746,979) 135,648
- 577,644 (17,831)
- 88 488,196
- 80,772 24,876
2,926 (397,976) (54,477)
238,517 4,949,567 343,900
(422) 531,743 634,427
37 846,429 (47,450)
- 83 -
377 1,092 -
2,978 15,283 (243)
(18,871) (252,364) 81,310
- (333,024) -
- - (572,686)
12,564 224,872 10,962
170 61,961 2,401
8,394 1,503,337 2,724
3,798 86,920 167,626
(1,310,562) (23,852,205) (1,703,728)
942,918 19,511,566 1,204,822
(103,437) 15,520,002 780,648
$ 1,652,306 $ 30,873,321  § 283,896

OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 2021



OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Elected Officials
Due to Other Governments
Due to Depositors
Taxes Collected in Advance for Other Governments

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION

Restricted for Individuals, Organizations. or Other Governments
Total Net Positions

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Custodial Funds

7,277,478
2,308,999
21,780

9,608,257

13,895
31,162
220,341
1,508,231
151,749
2,700,907

4,626,285

4,981,972

4,981,972




BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Custodial Funds

ADDITIONS

Collections from Individuals $ 1,120
Fines and Forfeitures and Fees Collected 5,043,075
Witness Advanced Funding 897
Tax Deeds and Fees Collected 881,051
Child Support Collected 1,383,630
Registry of the Court and Fees Collected 10,265,733
Recording Fees Collected 715,282
Documentary Stamps and Intangible Tax Collected 57,832,105
Restitution and Escrow Funds Collected 458,965
Juvenile Restitution Collected 10,625
Online Foreclosure Funds Collected 2,371,540
Cash Bonds Collected 511,007
County Related Taxes and Fees 351,531,221
State Related Licenses and Fees 34,523,630
Other 793,612
Total Additions 466,323,493
DEDUCTIONS

Distributions to Individuals 24,550
Fines and Forfeitures and Fees Collected 5,043,075
Witness Advanced Funding 897
Tax Deeds and Fees Collected 914,830
Child Support Collected 1,383,630
Registry of the Court and Fees Collected 10,387,257
Recording Fees Collected 715,282
Documentary Stamps and Intangible Tax Collected 57,832,105
Restitution and Escrow Funds Collected 432,674
Juvenile Restitution Collected 10,625
Online Foreclosure Funds Collected 2,083,354
Cash Bonds Collected 370,654
County Related Taxes and Fees 351,529,940
State Related Licenses and Fees 34,523,630
Other 782,750
Total Deductions 466,035,253
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 288,240

Total Net Position - Beginning -

Change in Accounting Practices 4,693,732
Total Net Position - Beginning, As Restated 4,693,732
Total Net Position - Ending $ 4,981,972

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Okaloosa County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as the County) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied
to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The County uses the Uniform Accounting System
mandated by Chapter 218.33, Florida Statutes.

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the County:
A. The Reporting Entity

Okaloosa County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, governed by a five member Board of
County Commissioners (the Board), each elected by the citizenry at large for four-year terms. The Board
has no powers other than those expressly vested in it by State Statute and its governmental powers
cannot be delegated. In addition, the Clerk of the Circuit Court, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser
and Supervisor of Elections (collectively referred to as the County’s Constitutional Officers) are elected by
the citizenry at-large and function independently of the Board. However, the Board funds a portion of, or
in certain instances, all of, the operating budgets of the County’s Constitutional Officers. These financial
statements include the operating activities of the Board and the County’s Constitutional Officers.

In evaluating the County as a reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units for
which the County may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be included within the County’s
financial statements. Management utilized criteria set forth in GASB literature for determining financial
accountability of potential component units in evaluating all potential component units. In accordance with
GASSB literature, the County (primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority
of the potential component unit governing board and 1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or 2)
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial
burden on the County. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Board evaluated the Emerald
Coast Bridge Authority (the Authority) in accordance with GASB literature. The Authority has been dormant
for several years. The Board does not believe it is financially accountable with respect to the Authority or
that a financial burden relationship exists based on an evaluation of GASB literature. As such, the Authority
is not included as part of the County’s reporting entity.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
1. Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement
of activities. These statements display information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. The primary government and the component unit are reported
separately with the focus of the statements being the primary government. Individual funds are not
displayed. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the County’s governmental activities and for the different business-type activities of the
County. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize
more than one fund to report the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional
activity. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The
County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.

Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the programs of the County and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational activities or the construction, acquisition, or
rehabilitation of capital assets required by a particular program. These revenues are subject to externally
imposed restrictions to these program uses. The determining factor for identifying to which function
program revenue pertains is which function generated the revenue in the case of charges for service.
For grants and contributions, the determining factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

1.

Government-Wide Statements - Continued

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues of the County. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues in the statement
of activities identifies the extent to which each governmental function and each business activity is self-
financing and how much they draw from the general revenues of the County.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, transactions related to certain functions or activities are segregated into separate
funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Afund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The fund financial statements are designed
to present detailed information about the County’s financial activities. Separate financial statements
are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements
is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

1. Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
An example of an exchange transaction is a charge for service, rent, in exchange for a specific service,
use of a County building. Non-exchange transactions are those in which the County gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange. An example of a non-exchange
transaction is property tax revenue received by the County which is used to fund various general
governmental services. The revenue from these exchange and non-exchange transactions is recognized
in the financial statements in varying ways depending on the basis of accounting used.

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the County are included on the statement
of net position. The statement of activities reports all revenues and expenses. Fiduciary funds are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The statement of fiduciary assets and
liabilities reports all assets and liabilities associated with the custodial funds of the County. Custodial
funds are the only type of fiduciary fund used by the County.

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions include property taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. The custodial funds of the County
use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize the receivables and payables recorded in those funds.

The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements
except for interfund services provided and used. Elimination of those charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned on the statement of activities.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports
the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial
statements therefore include reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship
between the government-wide statements and the governmental fund statements.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
3. Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. The County considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to
be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Those revenues susceptible
to accrual are sales tax, gasoline taxes and other intergovernmental revenues collected and held by
the state at year-end on behalf of the County, special assessments, licenses, interest revenue and
charges for service. Current year property taxes uncollected at the end of the fiscal year are generally
immaterial in amount and highly susceptible to uncollectibility and are not recorded as a receivable on
the balance sheet. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
the government receives cash.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general
long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the
debt service fund for payments to be made in the following year. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

4. Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the fund
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in equity reports
revenues and expenses. The proprietary funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. The principal operating revenues for the proprietary
funds are fees and charges for water and sewer, airports, solid waste, inspection services, emergency
medical services, convention center, self-insurance, compensated absence debt service and fleet
internal service operations. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds, and the internal service funds,
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.

Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities. They include property taxes, grants, entitlements, donations and
capital contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from internal and external
contributions of capital assets or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital
acquisition and construction.

5. Other Financial Statement Presentation Information

The County currently employs an indirect allocation system. An administrative service fee is charged by
the General Fund, at the direction of the Board of County Commissioners, to several special revenue and
enterprise funds to address General Fund services (finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, technology
management, etc.) provided.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. An exception to this general rule is the charge back of services, such as insurance costs,
vehicle maintenance, and central costs. Elimination of these charges would